
Page 1 of 2 
 

 

 
 

AGENDA 
REGULAR MEETING 

 

City Council of the Town of Colma 
Colma Community Center 
1520 Hillside Boulevard 

Colma, CA 94014 
 

Wednesday, November 8, 2017 
CLOSED SESSION – 6:00 PM 

REGULAR SESSION – 7:00 PM 

CLOSED SESSION – 6:00 PM 

1. In Closed Session Pursuant to Government Code Section 54957.6 – Conference with 
Labor Negotiators 

 Agency Negotiators:  William C. Norton, Interim City Manager 
     Austris Rungis, IEDA 
 Unrepresented Employees: City Manager 
     Chief of Police 
     Human Resources Manager 
     Administrative Technician III 
 
2. In Closed Session Pursuant to Government Code Section 54957 - Public Employment 

 Title: City Manager 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE AND ROLL CALL – 7:00 PM 

REPORT FROM CLOSED SESSION 

ADOPTION OF AGENDA  

PRESENTATIONS 

• Halloween House Decorating Contest Winners 

• Veterans Sportsman Alliance Presentation  

• Annual Town Employee Recognition  

PUBLIC COMMENTS  

Comments on the Consent Calendar and Non-Agenda Items will be heard at this time. 
Comments on Agenda Items will be heard when the item is called. 



Page 2 of 2 
 

CONSENT CALENDAR 

3. Motion to Accept the Minutes from the October 25, 2017 Regular Meeting. 

4. Motion to Accept the Minutes from the October 30, 2017 Special Meeting. 

5. Motion to Approve Report of Checks Paid for October 2017. 

6. Motion to Approve Acceptance of Work Performed by Concord Iron Works on Phase 3 of the 
Town Hall Project as Complete and Authorize the Director of Public Works to File a Notice of 
Completion with the County Recorder’s Office and Make the Final Payment to Concord Iron 
Works in Accordance with State Prompt Payment Laws.  

NEW BUSINESS 

7. PART-TIME COMMUNITY SERVICES OFFICER 

Consider: Motion to Adopt a Resolution Authorizing the Hiring of One Part Time, Temporary 
Community Services Officer.  

8. TOWN HALL INTERIOR AND EXTERIOR FINISH SELECTIONS 

Consider: Motion to Direct the City Manager to Implement City Council Preferred 
Finishes/Texture and Color Selections for the Town Hall Renovation Project on the Types and 
Colors Pertaining to the Town Hall Interior and Exterior Finishes and Products. 

REPORTS 

Mayor/City Council       

City Manager          

ADJOURNMENT 
The City Council Meeting Agenda Packet and supporting documents are available for review at the Colma Town Hall, 1188 El 
Camino Real, Colma, CA during normal business hours (Mon – Fri 8am-5pm). Persons interested in obtaining an agenda via e-
mail should call Caitlin Corley at 650-997-8300 or email a request to ccorley@colma.ca.gov.  

Reasonable Accommodation 
Upon request, this publication will be made available in appropriate alternative formats to persons with disabilities, as required 
by the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990. Any person with a disability, who requires a modification or accommodation to 
view the agenda, should direct such a request to Brian Dossey, ADA Coordinator, at 650-997-8300 or 
brian.dossey@colma.ca.gov. Please allow two business days for your request to be processed. 

mailto:ccorley@colma.ca.gov
mailto:brian.dossey@colma.ca.gov


1. In Closed Session Pursuant to Government Code Section 54957.6 – Conference
with Labor Negotiators

Agency Negotiators: William C. Norton, Interim City Manager 
Austris Rungis, IEDA 

Unrepresented Employees: Chief of Police
City Manager 
Human Resources Manager 
Administrative Technician III 

There is no staff report for this item. 

Item #1



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  



2. In Closed Session under Government Code § 54957, PUBLIC EMPLOYMENT

Title: City Manager

There is no staff report for this item. 

Item #2



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  



Page 1 of 3 

MINUTES 
REGULAR MEETING 

City Council of the Town of Colma 
Colma Community Center, 1520 Hillside Boulevard 

Colma, CA 94014 
Wednesday, October 25, 2017 

7:00 p.m.  

CALL TO ORDER 

Mayor Helen Fisicaro called the Regular Meeting of the City Council to order at 7:16 p.m. 

Council Present – Mayor Helen Fisicaro, Vice Mayor Raquel “Rae” Gonzalez, Council 
Members Joanne F. del Rosario, John Irish Goodwin and Diana Colvin were all present 

Staff Present – Interim City Manager William C. Norton, City Attorney Christopher Diaz, 
Administrative Services Director Brian Dossey, Police Chief Kirk Stratton, Police Commander 
Sherwin Lum, Contract Director of Public Works Brad Donohue, Contract City Planner 
Michael Laughlin, and City Clerk Caitlin Corley were in attendance.  

REPORT FROM CLOSED SESSION 

Mayor Fisicaro stated, “No action was taken at tonight’s closed session meeting.” 

ADOPTION OF THE AGENDA 

Mayor Fisicaro asked if there were any changes to the agenda. None were requested. The 
Mayor asked for a motion to adopt the agenda. 

Action:  Vice Mayor Gonzalez moved to adopt the agenda; the motion was seconded by 
Council Member del Rosario and carried by the following vote: 

Name Voting Present, Not Voting Absent 
Aye No Abstain Not Participating 

Helen Fisicaro, Mayor  
Raquel Gonzalez  
Joanne F. del Rosario  
John Irish Goodwin  
Diana Colvin  

5 0 

PRESENTATION 

Jill Nakagawa from Peninsula Reflections Assisted Living gave a presentation on Dementia 
Awareness. 

The Mayor announced that the presentation on the San Mateo County CalFresh Program 
would be postponed to a future meeting, as the CalFresh representatives were unable to 
attend.  

Council presented Commander Sherwin Lum with a proclamation recognizing the SMC Alert 
System. Commander Lum gave a brief presentation on how to sign up for the system.  

Item #3



 

Page 2 of 3 
 

PUBLIC COMMENTS 

Mayor Fisicaro opened the public comment period at 7:35 p.m. and seeing no one come 
forward to speak, she closed the public comment period. 

CONSENT CALENDAR 

2. Motion to Accept the Minutes from the October 5, 2017 Special Meeting. 

3. Motion to Accept the Minutes from the October 11, 2017 Regular Meeting. 

Action: Council Member Colvin moved to approve the Consent Calendar items #2 and 3; 
the motion was seconded by Council Member del Rosario and carried by the following vote: 

Name Voting Present, Not Voting Absent 
 Aye No Abstain Not Participating   
Helen Fisicaro, Mayor      
Raquel Gonzalez      
Joanne F. del Rosario      
John Irish Goodwin      
Diana Colvin      
 5 0    

NEW BUSINESS 

4. TOWN HALL PROJECT – AMENDMENT V CONSULTING SERVICES FOR FF&E  

Administrative Services Director Brian Dossey presented the staff report. Mayor Fisicaro 
opened the public comment period at 7:45 p.m. and seeing no one come forward to speak, 
she closed the public comment. Council discussion followed.  

Action: Vice Mayor Gonzalez moved to Adopt Resolution Approving and Authorizing the City 
Manager to Enter into a Fifth Amendment to the Agreement for Architectural Services with 
Ratcliff Architects to Develop Plans and Specifications for the Procurement of Furniture, 
Fixtures and Equipment for the Town Hall Renovation Project; the motion was seconded by 
Council Member Colvin and carried by the following vote: 

Name Voting Present, Not Voting Absent 
 Aye No Abstain Not Participating   
Helen Fisicaro, Mayor      
Raquel Gonzalez      
Joanne F. del Rosario      
John Irish Goodwin      
Diana Colvin      
 5 0    

 

  



Page 3 of 3 

STUDY SESSION 

5. TRANSIENT OCCUPANCY TAX

Contract City Planner Michael Laughlin presented the staff report. Mayor Fisicaro opened the
public comment period at 8:03 p.m. Resident Pat Hatfield made a comment about short
term rentals. The Mayor closed the public comment at 8:04 p.m. Council discussion
followed.

This item was for discussion only; no action was taken at this meeting.

6. BUSINESS REGISTRATION FEE

Contract City Planner Michael Laughlin presented the staff report. Mayor Fisicaro opened the
public comment period at 8:35 p.m. Resident Tom Taylor asked a question regarding
business registrations. The Mayor closed the public comment at 8:39 p.m. Council discussion
followed.

This item was for discussion only; no action was taken at this meeting.

COUNCIL CALENDARING 

There will be two Special Closed Session Meetings on Wednesday, November 1, 2017 and 
Thursday, November 2, 2017 at 5:00 p.m. 

The next Regular City Council Meeting will be on Wednesday, November 8, 2017 at 7:00 
p.m. 

REPORTS 

John Irish Goodwin 
San Mateo County Immigrant Integration Summit, 10/18/17 

Interim City Manager Bill Norton announced that the Colma Holiday Commercial would 
begin airing soon, and that there would be a groundbreaking event for the next phase of 
Town Hall Renovation Project on Monday, October 30, 2017 at 3 p.m.  

ADJOURNMENT 

Mayor Fisicaro adjourned the meeting at 9:10 p.m. in honor of Jim Comstock, a longtime 
and active community member, Judy Celeste, mother of former Colma Police Officer Mike 
Celeste, and all the victims of the North Bay Fires. 

Respectfully submitted,

Caitlin Corley 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  



Page 1 of 1 

MINUTES 
SPECIAL MEETING 

City Council of the Town of Colma 
Town Hall Construction Site, 1198 El Camino Real 

Colma, CA 94014 
Monday, October 30, 2017 

3:00 p.m.  

CALL TO ORDER 

Mayor Helen Fisicaro called the Special Meeting of the City Council to order at 3:07 p.m. 

Council Present – Mayor Helen Fisicaro, Vice Mayor Raquel “Rae” Gonzalez, Council 
Members Joanne F. del Rosario, John Irish Goodwin and Diana Colvin were all present 

Staff Present – Interim City Manager William C. Norton, Administrative Services Director 
Brian Dossey, Contract Director of Public Works Brad Donohue, Contract Assistant Engineer 
Mahan Bozorginia, Contract City Planner Michael Laughlin, Contract Assistant City Engineer 
Dave Bishop, Contract Assistant City Planner Jonathan Kwan, and City Clerk Caitlin Corley 
were in attendance.  

PRESENTATION 

1. TOWN HALL RENOVATION PROJECT PHASE IV GROUNDBREAKING CEREMONY

Contract Director of Public Works Brad Donohue made introductory remarks about the
project. Mayor Fisicaro thanked staff and the new contractors BHM Construction, Inc. for
their hard work and expressed Council’s excitement about progress on the project.

The Mayor and City Council officially broke ground on the project, and the group posed for
a photo.

This item was for presentation only; no action was taken at this meeting.

ADJOURNMENT 

Mayor Fisicaro adjourned the Special Meeting at 3:17 p.m. 

Respectfully submitted,

Caitlin Corley 

Item #4



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  



Item #5











































 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  



Staff Report Town Hall Phase 3 NOC  Page 1 of 3 
10/30/2017 

STAFF REPORT

TO:  Mayor and Members of the City Council 

FROM:  Brad Donohue, Director of Public Works  

VIA:  William Norton, Interim City Manager 

MEETING DATE: November 8, 2017 

SUBJECT: Concord Iron Works - Notice of Completion 

RECOMMENDATION 

Staff recommends that the City Council approve: 

ACCEPTANCE OF WORK PERFORMED BY CONCORD IRON WORKS ON PHASE 3 OF THE 
TOWN HALL PROJECT AS COMPLETE AND AUTHORIZE THE DIRECTOR OF PUBLIC 
WORKS TO FILE A NOTICE OF COMPLETION WITH THE COUNTY RECORDER’S OFFICE 
AND MAKE THE FINAL PAYMENT TO CONCORD IRON WORKS IN ACCORDANCE WITH 
STATE PROMPT PAYMENT LAWS.  

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

On or about October 12th, 2017, Concord Iron Works (“CIW”) completed construction services 
for Phase 3 of the Town Hall Project, Structural Steel (“Phase 3”). CIW performed the bulk of 
their work from December 2016 – January 2017; returning once in March 2017 and again in 
October 2017 for a few remaining scope items. Their scope of work is now fully complete, and 
the Town should move forward with filing Notice of Completion. 

FISCAL IMPACT 

Upon calculations based on previous Council Resolution on budget allocation and Change Order 
totals, the total project budget for Phase 3 is $1,153,402.80.  CIW’s final contract total is 
$1,128,683.71.  The balance of $24,719.09 shall be returned to the Overall Project Contingency 
Funds and shall be allocated if necessary during Phase IV, Infill & Sitework.  

BACKGROUND 

The Phase 3 contract was awarded to CIW on July 27, 2016.  The scope of work required that 
CIW complete the structural steel superstructure of the addition building, metal decking for the 
addition building, interior and exterior stairways and the metal grate structure in the mechanical 
yard.    

CIW mobilized to the job site on December 16th, 2016 with the first steel delivery occurring on 
December 20th, 2016. Steel was fabricated in CIW’s Pittsburgh shop and routed by way of flat-

Item #6



Staff Report Town Hall Phase 3 NOC   Page 2 of 3 
10/30/2017 

bed trailer trucks via state approved hauling routes.  Over the next several weeks, continuous 
steel deliveries occurred, each time upon arrival crews would off-load and stack materials in 
strategically placed staging areas for the crane operator to later lift into place. Upon placement 
of steel ironworks, CIW would proceed with welding and bolting at points of connection 
between steel members.  All welding work was done under the supervision of Signet Testing 
Labs, a third party special inspection firm hired by the Town.  

The steel superstructure was fully erected and welded in place on January 27, 2017.   

In March 2017, CIW returned to install the interior stairs at the building addition.  

In October 2017, CIW returned to install the exterior stairs and the metal grate structure in the 
mechanical yard.  

Similar delivery and welding procedures to that of the main superstructure were implemented 
during the March and October portions of work.  That work was also monitored by Signet 
Testing Labs.  

ANALYSIS 

The contractor has been paid for all contract work to date minus retention.   

Staff requests that the City Council accept work performed and authorize the Contract Director 
of Public Works to file a Notice of Completion (“NOC”) with the San Mateo County Recorder’s 
Office.   

The filing of the Notice of Completion means: 

• The Town is satisfied that CIW has completed Phase 3 in accordance with the contract 
plans and specifications. 

• At the time of the filing of the NOC, there has not been a claim filed against the Town. 
• The Town accepts CIW’s work as complete. 
• The time frame for the stop payment notice claims commences once the NOC has been 

filed with the County Recorder’s Office  
 
Thirty days after the NOC has been recorded, if no claims from subcontractors and suppliers 
have been filed with the Town, the Town can release the remaining 5% retention to the 
contractor in the amount of $56,434.19.  

To date there have been no stop notices or claims filed with the Town for Phase 3.  

Council Adopted Values 
 
Responsibility is one of the values that the City Council adopted within their Strategic Plan.  By 
approving this request and approving filing of the NOC, the Town would be finalizing Phase 3, 
releasing the retention payment to CIW and closing out the construction contract thereby 
shortening the time for the filing of claims on Phase 3. 
 



Staff Report Town Hall Phase 3 NOC  Page 3 of 3 
10/30/2017 

Alternatives 

The City Council can deny filing the NOC for Phase 3.  The Town would then not file the NOC 
with the County Recorder’s Office nor release retention to CIW and close out the construction 
contract.  Such action would increase the time for subcontractors and material suppliers to file 
claims.  

CONCLUSION 

Staff has reviewed the completed work and recommends that the City Council accept work 
performed by CIW on Phase 3 of the Town Hall Project as complete and authorize the Director 
of Public Works to file a Notice of Completion with the County Recorder’s Office and make the 
final payment to CIW in accordance with state prompt payment laws.  

ATTACHMENTS 
A. Notice of Completion – Structural Steel 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  



RECORDING REQUESTED BY AND 
WHEN RECORDED MAIL TO: 

Town of Colma 
1198 El Camino Real 
Colma, CA 94014-3212 
Attn: Brad Donohue, PW Director 

THE AREA ABOVE IS RESERVED FOR RECORDER’S USE 

[NO RECORDING FEE SHALL BE CHARGED PURSUANT TO GOVERNMENT 
CODE SECTIONS 6103 AND 27383]  

TOWN OF COLMA 

NOTICE OF COMPLETION 

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN THAT: 

1. The Town of Colma is the owner of a work of improvement described as the Colma Town Hall
Campus Renovation and Additions Project – Phase 3, Structural Steel (hereafter, the “Work”), and of
the real property on which the Work is situated, which real property is located in the County of San
Mateo, State of California and specifically described as follows: 1198 El Camino Real Colma, CA
94014; and

2. Concord Iron Works, Inc. is the contractor that was awarded the construction contract by the Town of
Colma for the Work, and 

3. The Work was completed by Concord Iron Works, Inc. and accepted by the Town of Colma on
November 08, 2017; and

4. The nature of the interest of the Town of Colma is as a fee simple owner in the above-described real
property; and

5. The name and address of the Town of Colma is 1198 El Camino Real, Colma, California 94014; and

6. I, Brad Donohue, Contract Public Works Director of the Town of Colma, am authorized by the City
Council of the Town of Colma to execute and file this Notice of Completion with the County
Recorder of the County of San Mateo as an authorized agent of the Town of Colma.  I have read the
Notice of Completion and know the contents thereof; the same is true of my own knowledge.

I declare under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of California that the foregoing is 
true and correct.  

______________________________ ___________________________ 
(Date and Place) Brad Donohue 

Director of Public Works 

Attachment A



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  



Staff Report Part-Time Temporary CSO Page 1 of 2 

STAFF REPORT 

TO:  Mayor and Members of the City Council 

FROM:  Kirk Stratton, Chief of Police 

VIA:  William C. Norton, Interim City Manager 

MEETING DATE:  November 8, 2017 

SUBJECT: Part-Time Community Service Officer 

RECOMMENDATION 

Staff recommends that the City Council adopt the following resolution: 

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE HIRING OF ONE PART TIME, TEMPORARY 
COMMUNITY SERVICE OFFICER. 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

The proposed resolution would allow the Colma Police Department to employ one community 
service officer, part time, to the current staffing level. The hiring of a part time community 
service officer will enhance parking enforcement efforts by existing staff and continue to 
enforce parking after 5 p.m. Monday through Friday and in areas where enforcement is 
conducted 24 hours per day, every day. Funding for the position will be established from the 
COPS fund surplus.  

FISCAL IMPACT 

Staff researched the financial impact for hiring a part time community service officer. The 
Colma Police Department has a police patrol budget of $4,505,380 and the cost to hire one-part 
time community service officer, if the hourly wage is $32.11 per hour, step 1 of the CSO salary 
schedule, would be approximately $32,110 annually. This hourly rate is comparable to other 
San Mateo County agencies that employ community service officers. The position is an at will 
position with no benefits. A part time community service officer would typically work (3) three 
or (4) four days per week, no more than 1,000 hours annually, or a schedule that meets the 
needs of the Department. The current fiscal 2017-2018 COPS fund has a surplus of $40,000 
that may be used to fund a part time community service officer. The police department budget 
would be able to fund the position even after the COPS surplus is expended, if needed. 

Item #7



Staff Report Part-Time Temporary CSO Page 2 of 2 

ANALYSIS 

Parking has been an ongoing issue in the Town of Colma, specifically, the Sterling Park 
neighborhood. The City Council recently approved an ordinance changing the existing parking 
regulations in the Sterling Park neighborhood and other areas such as El Camino Real Fronting 
Sterling Park. The ordinance requires consistent parking enforcement as some areas are now 
enforced 24 hours per day, every day. The Colma Police Department has a full-time Community 
Service Officer that works (5) eight-hour days, Monday through Friday. A part time community 
service officer would fill in during off hours.  

The recruitment and hiring process for this position takes less time than hiring a police officer 
due to the requirements. A parking enforcement officer does not require a POST certificate and 
the age requirement is 18 years and older, opposed to 21 and over for a police officer.  

A community service officer supports front line law enforcement, therefore, funding may come 
from the COPS fund. State cops funding is allocated by the State Controller to counties for 
deposit by the county auditor in a Supplemental Law Enforcement Services Account known as 
SLESF, established in each county.  

Council Adopted Values 

The proposed resolution to hire a part time community service officer is responsible as it is in 
the best interest of the Town and allows the police department to continue to provide quality 
services with regards to current parking issues and public safety.  

Alternatives 

The City Council could choose not to adopt the resolution. Doing so is not recommended as the 
police department needs additional resources to help enforce new parking regulations in the 
Sterling Park neighborhood, El Camino Real and other areas within the Town’s jurisdiction. 

CONCLUSION 

Staff recommends council approve the resolution to hire a part time community service officer 
at an approximate annual cost of $32,110. 

ATTACHMENTS 

A. Resolution 



Res. 2017-___; Temporary Part-Time Community Service Officer Page 1 of 2 
25977.00100\30284872.1

RESOLUTION NO. 2017-___ 
OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF COLMA 

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE HIRING OF ONE PART TIME, TEMPORARY 
COMMUNITY SERVICE OFFICER 

The City Council of the Town of Colma does hereby resolve: 

1. Background.

(a) Numerous cities nationwide have utilized Community Service Officers within their Police
Departments for many years. 

(b) Community Service Officers are often tasked with a variety of duties including assisting 
with parking enforcement, investigations and other civilian type duties. 

(c) The Town of Colma currently has one full-time Community Service Officer. 

(d) The Community Service Officer is a civilian position. 

(e) Staff is now recommending the hiring of one new part-time Community Service Officer. 

(f) The hiring of a part time community service officer will enhance parking enforcement 
efforts by existing staff and continue to enforce parking after 5pm Monday through Friday and 
in areas where enforcement is conducted 24 hours per day, every day.  

(g) Funding for the position will be established from the COPS fund surplus. 

(h) The new part-time Community Service Officer shall be subject to all employment rules 
and regulations of the Town. 

2. Order.

(a) The City Council hereby authorizes the hiring of one part-time temporary Community
Service Officer. 

/ 

/ 

/ 

/ 

/ 

/ 

Attachment A



Res. 2017-___; Temporary Part-Time Community Service Officer Page 2 of 2 
25977.00100\30284872.1

Certification of Adoption 

I certify that the foregoing Resolution No. 2017-___ was duly adopted at a regular meeting of 
said City Council held on November 8, 2017 by the following vote: 

Name Counted toward Quorum Not Counted toward Quorum 

Aye No Abstain Present, Recused  Absent 

Helen Fisicaro, Mayor 

Raquel Gonzalez 

Joanne del Rosario 

Diana Colvin 

John Irish Goodwin 

Voting Tally 

Dated ______________________ ___________________________________ 
Helen Fisicaro, Mayor 

Attest:   ____________________________ 
 Caitlin Corley, City Clerk 



Staff Report Town Hall Finishes  Page 1 of 3 
10/19/2017 

STAFF REPORT

TO: Mayor and Members of the City Council 

FROM: Brad Donohue, Public Works Director/CSG Consultants 

Mahan Bozorginia, Project Manager/CSG Consultants 

VIA:  William C. Norton, Interim City Manager 

MEETING DATE: Wednesday, November 8, 2017 

SUBJECT: Town Hall Interior and Exterior Finish Selections  

RECOMMENDATION 

Staff recommends that City Council by Motion to: 

DIRECT THE CITY MANAGER TO IMPLEMENT CITY COUNCIL PREFERRED 
FINISHES/TEXTURE AND COLOR SELECTIONS FOR THE TOWN HALL 
RENOVATION PROJECT ON THE TYPES AND COLORS PERTAINING TO THE 
TOWN HALL INTERIOR AND EXTERIOR FINISHES AND PRODUCTS. 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

In tonight’s presentation, Ratcliff Architects has prepared several visual color-boards portraying 
the various interior and exterior building materials and products along with proposed colors, 
finishes and textures for review, comment, and selection. The purpose of this review is for staff 
to obtain an approval by motion from City Council on their preferred finish/texture and color 
selections.  These selections are required so the general contractor can procure the various 
materials and products for walls, floors, ceilings, casework (cabinetry), counters, tile, etc.   

Moreover, the selected finishes shall also be used in the design development of the Furniture, 
Fixtures and Equipment (FF&E) Package for the Town Hall Project.  

FISCAL IMPACT 

There are no fiscal impacts to the project budget with respect to this presentation and the finish 
selections being provided.   

BACKGROUND 

Several months ago, the architect and Staff had a study session introducing various finish 
material and product selections for approvals. That session provided direction to Staff in what 

Item #8



Staff Report Town Hall Finishes  Page 2 of 3 
10/19/2017 

type of carpet and type of floor and wall tile the City Council preferred through visual color 
renditions, through a power point presentation. City Council reviewed the selections and 
provided Staff and architect direction regarding colors and preferences for the Council 
Chambers, but needed more visual (touchy/feely) information before they could render 
direction back to Staff on the array of finishes for the remainder of the facility.  

The architectural design team has specified various finish materials and products to complete 
the final buildout of the facility.  The Contractor has provided bid pricing based on these 
specifications.  Each product being provided is per a specific manufacturer; patterns and colors 
differentiate based on manufacturer. What is needed at this time is direction from the City 
Council and input from the public on the finishes, colors, textures and color patterns for the 
various materials and products so the Contractor can move forward and procure these 
products. 

ANALYSIS 

This color-board/presentation depicts patterns and colors for each product specified for the 
project.  Products being presented require review by City Council for selection of 
patterns/textures and colors. Staff and architect will take the preferred selections made by 
Council and give direction and instruction to the Contractor.  

Since the materials and products have already been specified, the remaining task is to review 
and approve the colors and preferred finishes.  The selections made at this study session shall 
serve as the basis for procuring the interior and exterior building products.  Since each 
product’s finish varies with respect to each manufacturer. The direction from City Council that is 
given tonight will be a tool that the architect will use in reviewing the many product and 
material submittals that the contractor will submit to the Town so they can move forward in 
ordering the various finish products to complete this phase of construction.    

A simple example of this can be made with paint finish selections. Paint suppliers can typically 
match and provide any finish; however, each supplier would have a unique name and/or code 
for said finish. Having a preferred color selected will enable the contractor and their sub-
contractors to work with their vendors to match those color selections.  

Council Adopted Values 

This presentation will provide both City Council, Staff and architect with input from the public to 
engage in constructive decision making regarding the appearance and historical presence of the 
Town Hall facility.  The City Council is responding to their commitment to the public to be 
RESPONSIBLE to the public when you stated that you will study, consider and direct staff on 
product and finish selection keeping and preserving the historical integrity of the building.   

Alternatives 

City Council could reject all or portions of the various finish selections provided at the study 
session and request that the architect provide additional information or alternatives.  Doing so, 
however, is not in the City’s best interest because it would delay the Contractor from procuring 
and ordering materials in timely fashion, thus potentially delaying the completion of the project. 
It would be recommended that direction be given to staff for reconsideration and selected 



Staff Report Town Hall Finishes  Page 3 of 3 
10/19/2017 

finishes giving clear direction and allowing City Manager and Staff to approve the resubmittal of 
the preferred finishes.  

CONCLUSION 

Staff recommends the City Council adopt a motion directing the City Manager on the types and 
colors pertaining to the Town Hall interior and exterior finishes and products.   

ATTACHMENTS 

A. Color-Board, color renditions of the interior and exterior finishes. 





Council Chambers



Council Chambers



Open Office to Lobby



Lobby - From Reception



Lobby from 1941 Building



Lobby from Plaza Open Office Corner



Lobby from Stairs



Open office to Kitchen



Large Conference Room



Kitchen


	11.08.17 Regular Meeting Agenda
	1. Closed Session - Negotiations
	2. Closed Session - Employment, City Manager
	3. 10.25.17 Regular Minutes
	4. 10.30.17 Special Minutes
	5. Report of Checks Paid - October
	6. Concord Iron Works - Notice of Completion
	A. Notice of Completion

	7. Part-Time Community Services Officer
	A. Resolution

	8. Town Hall Interior and Exterior Finish Selections
	A. Building Finishes Colorboard Renderings.pdf
	INT-OpenOffice-toLobby
	INT-Lobby-fromReception
	INT-Lobby-from41bldg
	INT-Lobby-fromPlazaOpenOfficeCorner
	INT-Lobby-fromStairs
	INT-OpenOffice-toKitchen
	INT-LrgConf
	INT-Kitchen
	INT-Council Chambers
	INTERIOR ELEVATION - SOUTH_Red_2566x831 copy





